CL-2019-0002911

pﬂ This SUBPOENA/SUBPOENA DUCES TECUM TO PERSON UNDER FOREIGN SUBPOENA is being served by a pnvate
process server who must provide proof of service in accordance with Va, Code § 8.01-325.

TO the person authorized to serve this process: Upon execution, the return of this process shall be made to the
Clerk of Court.

NAME: American Civil legrtles Unlon,nlnc.

ADDRESS: " ¢/o Nadine Strossen 132 West 43rd Street, New York, NY 10036

[ ] PERSONAL SERVICE No. e

Being unable to make personal service, a copy was delivered in the following manner;

[ ] Delivered to family member (not temporary sojourner or guest) age 16 or older at usuai place of abode of
party named above after giving information of its purport. List name, age of recipient, and relation of
recipient to party named above:

[ 1 Posted on front door or such other door as appears to be the main entrance of usual place of abodc address
listed above. (Other authorized recipient not found.)

[ ] notfound Sheriff

gEIE;N E}EREY CLERK

FAX COUNTY CIRCUIT COu
4110 CHAIN BRIDGE ROAD i
FAIRFAX, VIRGINIA 22030

FORM CC-1419 (MASTER, PAGE THREE OF THREE) 02/09



SUBPOENA/SUBPOENA DUCES TECUM
TO PERSON UNDER FOREIGN SUBPOENA
Commonwealth of Virginia VA CODE §§ 8.01-412.8—8.01-412.15; Rule 4:9

FAIRFAX COUNTY o Circuit Court
4110 CHAIN BRIDGE ROAD, FAIRFAX, VIRGINIA 22030
ADDRESS OF COURT
i SOAN G DEPP U v./In re: ... AMBER LAURA HEARD
TO THE PERSON AUTHORIZED BY LAW TO SERVE THIS PROCESS: Pl 2
You are commanded to summon - f_’. f.:-; o
(4 A
‘American Civil Liberties Union, Inc. 25 B <4
NAME o R
c/o Nadine Strossen, 132 West 43rd Street 2o T EM
’ _ STREET ADDRESS ) ;’4“9-_"_11 = "I;'D
New York NY " .=A20036
ary STATE ?%‘:' _‘& z
TO THE PERSON SUMMONED: You are commanded to
D attend and give testimony at a deposition

described below

produce the books, documents, records, electronically stored information, and tangible things designated and
See Attachment A

Brown Rudnick LLP
ato LAIMES Sequare, New. York, NY. 10036,

LOCATION

R |

September 1, 2020 at 10:00 a.m
and to permit inspection and copying by the requesting party or someone acting in his or her behalf of the
designated items in your possession, custody or control

DATE AND TIME
i—J permit inspection of the premises

at the following location

LOCATION
DATE AND TIME

.This subpoena is issucd upon the request of the party named below

John C. Depp, Il
NAME OF REQUESTING PARTY e
..... ¢/o Benjamin G. Chew, 601 Thirteenth Street, N.W., Suite 600
STREET ADDRESS
Washington DC 20005 (202) 536-1700
................. ek e et AL
FORM CC-1439 (MASTER, PAGL ONE OF THREL) 07/09




CL-2019-0002911

The requesﬁng party has submitted to this Clerk’s Office the foreign subpoena, copy attached, the terms of which are
incorporated herein, and the written statement required by Virginia Code § 8.01-412.10.

The names, addresses and telephone numbers of all counsel of record in the proceeding to which the subpoena relates
and of parties not represented by counsel are providedDbe]ow@ on attached list.

______________ Ak \O® 2020 . JOHN T. FREY, CLERK

- |

DEPUTY CLERK

Benjamin G. C?J.?Mm ............... 29113 VA
WAME OF ATTORNEY FOR REQUEST! BAR NUMBER LICENSING STATE

601 Thirteenth Street, N.W., Suite 600 (202) 536-1700
. OFFICE ADDRESS TELEPHONE NUMBER OF ATTORNEY
................. Washington, DC 20005 (202) 536-1701
OFFICE ADDRESS FACSIMILE NUMBER OF ATTORNEY
o T o S o
STREET ADDRESS grmmm—— o mmmmm—m———" TELEPHONE NUMBER
STREET ADDRESS FACSIMILE NUMBE
NAME - BAR NUMBER LICENSING STATE
e s s
""" STREET ADDRESS FACSIMILE NUMBER
......... o TeTT o
STREET ADDRESS h TELEPHONE NUMBER
......... i e

RETURN OF SERVICE (see page three of this form)

FORM CC-1439 (MASTER, PAGE TWO OF TIIREE) 0%/09



CL-2019-0002911

The names, addresses and telephone numbers of all counsel of record in the proceeding to which
the subpoena relates and of parties not represented by counsel are:

Benjamin G. Chew (VSB No. 29113)
Andrew C. Crawford (VSB No. §9093)
BROWN RUDNICK LLP

601 Thirteenth Street, N.W., Suite 600
Washington, D.C. 20005

Telephone: (202) 536-1700

Facsimile: (202) 536-1701

Camille M. Vasquez (pro hac vice)
BROWN RUDNICK LLP

2211 Michelson Drive

Seventh Floor

Irvine, CA 92612

Telephone: (949) 752-7100

~ Facsimile: (949) 252-1514

Adam R, Waldman (pro hac vice)

THE ENDEAVOR LAW FIRM, P.C.

1775 Pennsylvania Avenue, N.W., Suite 350
Washington, D.C. 20006

Telephone: (202) 715-0966

Facsimile: (202) 715-0964

Counsel for Plaintiff John C. Depp, II



SERVICE LIST

J. Benjamin Rottenborn (VSB No. 84796)
Joshua R. Treece (VSB No. 79149)
WOODS ROGERS PLC

10 S. Jefferson Street, Suite 1400

P.O. Box 14125

Roanoke, VA 24011

Telephone: (540) 983-7540
brottenborn@woodsrogers.com
jtreece@woodsrogers.com

Elaine Charlson Bredehoft (VSB No. 23766)
Carla D. Brown (VSB No. 44803)

Adam S. Nadelhaft (VSB No. 91717)
David E. Murphy (VSB No. 90938)
Charlson Bredehoft Cohen & Brown, P.C.
11260 Roger Bacon Drive, Suite 201
Reston, VA 20190

Telephone: (703) 318-6800

Facsimile: (703) 318-6808
cbredehofi@cbeblaw.com
cbrown(@cbcblaw.com
anadelhaft@cbcblaw.com
dmurphy@cbcblaw.com

Counsel for Defendant Amber Laura Heard

CL-2019-0002911
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ATTACHMENT A

DEFINITIONS

I. *“YOU” and/or “YOUR?” shall mean and refer to American Civil Liberties Union,
Inc. and its agents, officers, directors, employees, and/or any other PERSON acting on its behalf,
including but not limited to YOUR affiliated entities or state or local branches.

2. “COMMUNICATION” and/or “COMMUNICATIONS” shall mean and refer to
any written and verbal exchanges between any person or persons or entities, including but not
limited to verbal conversations, telephone calls, letters, e-mails, memoranda, reports, telegraphs,
faxes, exhibits, drawings, text messages, and any other documents which confirm or relate to the
written or verbal exchange, including applicable ELECTRONICALLY STORED
INFORMATION, |

3. “ELECTRONICALLY STORED INFORMATION” means data that is stored in an
electronic medium and shall include, by way of example only, computer programs, electronic mail
(including message contents, header information and logs of electronic mail usage), output
resulting from the use of any software program, including electronic, digital, or any other recorded
material whatsoever, including but not limited to, any notes, memoranda, videotapes, affidavits,
statements, papers, files, forms, data, tapes, printouts, letters, reports, communications, contracts,
agreements, telegrams, records, financial records, applications, correspondence, diaries, calendars,
recordings and transcriptions of recordings, voice mail messages recorded electronically and in
writing, email messages and printouts, photographs, diagrams, or any other writings, however
produced or reproduced, word processing documents, spreadsheets, databases, telephone logs,
contact manager information, Internet usage files, PDF files, .JPG files, .TIF files, .TX.T files,
batch files, ASCII files, and any and all miscellaneous files and data and shall include all active
data, deleted data, file fragments, metadata, native file formats and forensic images thereof.

4, “DIVORCE ACTIQN” shall mean and refer to the action entitled In re the
Marriage of Amber Laura Depp and John Christopher Depp I, Los Angeles Superior Court Case
No. BD641052.

i




B oW N

L B o =« e T = A ¥ ]

11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24
25
26
27
28

5. “DOCUMENT” and/or “DOCUMENTS” unless otherwise indicated, are used in
their customarily broad sense and shall refer to and mean all writings and other tangible things of
any nature whatsoeve_r, and shall include, but not be limited to, all writings (or drafts thereof),
medical records, drawings, graphs, charts, photographs, phone records, other data compilations or
storage devices from which information can be obtained (even if such information must be
translated into a reasonably usable form), magnetically recorded or stored information generated
by a computer, contracts, agreements, communications, correspondence, telegrams, memoranda,
records, reports, books, summaries or records of telephone conversations, summaries or records of
personal conversations or interviews, diaries, forecasts, statistical statements, work papers, drafts,
accounts, analytical records, minutes or records of meetings or conferences, records, reports or
summaries of negotiations, brochures, pamphlets, circulars, calendars, notes, marginal notations,
bills, invoices, checks, lists, journals, advertising, and all other written, printed, recorded or
photographic matter or sound reproductions, or tangible representations of things, however
produced or reproduced, including ELECTRONICALLY STORED INFORMATION and all
nonidentical copies of the foregoing.

6. . “MR. DEPP” means and refers to Plaintiff John C. Depp, II.

7. “MS. HEARD” means and refers to Defendant Amber Laura Heard.

8. The term “PERSON” and/or “PERSONS” shall be broadly construed to include all
natural and artificial persons. |

INSTRUCTIONS

9. When necessary, the singular form of a word shall be interpreted as plural, and the
masculine gender shall be deemed to include the feminine, in order to bring within the scope any
DOCUMENTS which might otherwise be construed to be outside the scope of these Requests.
The terms, “and” and “or,” have both conjunctive and disjunctive meanings, and “each,” “any,”
and “all” mean “each and every.”

10.  Allundefined terms shall be interpreted according to their plain and commonsense
meaning.

Iy
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11.  DOCUMENTS should be produced as single page .tiff format files imaged at 300
dpi, with the exception of stand-alone Databases (e.g., Access), spreadsheets (e.g., Excel), slide
presentations (e.g., PowerPoint), video files, and audio files, which should be produced in native
format. Each .tiff file should have a unique name matching the Bates number labeled on the
corresponding page. Color DOCUMENTS should be produced in color.

12.  DOCUMENTS should be produced with (a) a delimited data file (.dat), and (b) an
image load file (.opt and/or .1fp). Each .tiff in a production must be referenced in the -
corresponding image load file. The total number of documents referenced in a production’s data

load file should match the total number of designated document breaks in the image load file for

the production.

13.  DOCUMENTS should be produced with extracted metadata for each DOCUMENT
in the form of a .dat file. The metadata should include the following fields, to the extent such

fields are available in the original DOCUMENT as it originally existed in its native format;

Bates Begin The bates label of the first page of _the document
" Bates End The bates label of the last page of the docu;nent
Attach_Begin The bates label of the first page of a family of documents
(e.g., email and attachment)
Attach_End The bates label of the last page of a family of documents
Sent Date For email, the sent date of the message
Sent Time For email, the sent time of the message converted to GMT
Email Author The sender of an email message (email FROM)
Recjpient The recipients of an email message (email TO)
CC The recipients of a copy of an email message (email CC)
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BCC The fecipients of a blind copy of an email message (email
BCC)
Custodian The custodian in whose file the document was found,
including all duplicate custodians
Datercvd Date received
Datesent Date sent
Subject E-mail subject
Author The person who created the document
Modifier The .person who last modified the document
Created The creation date of the document
Last Modified The last moaiﬁed date of the document
Title The title of the document
‘File Name The name of the file
File Extension The file extension of the document
MD5Hash The MDS5 Hash Value of the document
Message 1D The Message ID of the email and/or attachment
Mailstore | The name of the Mailstore in which the email and/or
attachment is contained
File Size The size of the file
File Path Original file path of thé document as it existed in the normal

course of business or the folder location if the

document/email is contained in a Mailstore
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Number_Pages The number of pages in the document

14. Al DOCUMENTS attached to and/or embedded in an e-mail and/or other
DOCUMENT must be produced contemporaneously and sequentially after the parent e-
mail/document.

15.  In producing DOCUMENTS, you shall furnish all DOCUMENTS in your
possession, custody, or contrel. Without limitation of the term “control,” a DOCUMENT is
deemed to be in your control if you have the right to secure the DOCUMENT or a copy thereof
from another person or public or private entity having actual possession thereof, or if you have the |
practical ability to obtain the DOCUMENT from a third-party, irrespective g)f any legal
entitlement to the DOCUMENT. If any original DOCUMENT requested is not in your possession,
custody, or control, then you are required to produce the best available copy, and to state, to the
best of your knowledge, the name and address of the person in possession and/or control of the
original. The fact that a DOCUMENT is in possession of another person or entity does not relieve
you of the obligation to produce your copy of the DOCUMENT, even if the two DOCUMENTS
are identical. In addition, any copy of a DOCUMENT shall be produced if it differs in any respect
from the original (e.g., by reason of handwritten notes or comments having been added to copy
which do not appear on the original or otherwise).

16,  If responsive DOCUMENTS no longer exist because they have been destroyed,
cannot be located, or are otherwise no longer in your possession or subject to your control,
identify each DOCUMENT and describe the circumstances under which it was lost or destroyed.

17.  All DOCUMENTS should be organized and labeled to correspond by number with
the numbered categoriasl set forth in these Requests. If a DOCUMENT is responsive to more than
one Request, reference that DOCUMENT in your written response to each Request to which it is
responsive or in a load file identifying the same.

18. A Request fora DOCUMENT shall be deemed to include a request for any and all
file folders within which the DOCUMENT was contained, transmittal sheets, cover letters,

exhibits, enclosures, or attachments to the DOCUMENT in addition to the DOCUMENT itself.
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19.  Ifyou claim that any DOCUMENT is, in whole or in part, beyond the scope of
permissible discovery (including but not limited to any claim of privilege or confidentiality),
specify in detail each and every ground on which such claim rests and identify generally what the
document is. If you assert any claim of privilege, then at the time of production you are to furnish
a privilege log that specifically identifies each DOCUMENT (or portion) withheld by (a) date, (b)
author, (c) recipient, (d) persons copled, (¢) general description of the subject matter of thé
DOCUMENT, and (f) a statement of the specific privilege claimed and the basis upon which such
privilege is claimed as to each separate DOCUMENT (or portion) withheld. The privilege log
should contain enough specificity, but without disclosing privileged information, to allow
Plaintiffs and the Court to adequately assess the privilege claimed.

20.  To the extent you consider any portion of the following Requests to be
objectionable, (a) identify the portion of the Request claimed to be objectionable, (b) state the
nature and basis of the objection, and (c) produce DOCUMENTS responsive to any portion of
such Request that is not claimed to be objectionable.

21, If you believe that aﬁy Request is unclear, unintelligible, or because of its wording
otherwise prevents you from responding fully to that Request, identify the ambiguity or source of
confusion and explain the definition and understanding that yoﬁ relied upon in responding. It shall
be insufficient to object to a particular Request on the grounds that it is vague, ambiguous, or
otherwise unclear, and withhold DOCUMENTS on that basis without seeking clarification.

DOCUMENT REQUESTS
REQUEST NO. 1:

All DOCUMENTS that refer, reflect, or relate to any donations made to YOU or for
YOUR benefit by MS. HEARD, from January 1, 2016 through and including the present.
REQUEST NO, 2:

All COMMUNICATIONS between YOU and MS. HEARD regarding any donations made
to YOU or for YOUR benefit by MS. HEARD, from January 1, 2016 through and including the

present.

Iy
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REQUEST NO. 3:

All COMMUNICATIONS between YOU and MS. HEARD regarding the DIVORCE
ACTION.
REQUEST NO. 4:

All COMMUNICATIONS between YOU and MS. HEARD regarding the relationship
between MR, DEPP and MS. HEARD.
REQUEST NO. 5:

All DOCUMENTS, including all COMMUNICATIONS, that refer, reflect, or relate to any
press releases, public statements, or other publicity related to any donations made by MS. HEARD

to YOU or for YOUR benefit, from January 1, 2016 through and including the present.




SUPREME COURT OF THE STATE OF NEW YORK

COUNTY OF NEW YORK
John C. Depp, 11, ORIGINIATING STATE:
THE COMMONWEALTH OF VIRGINIA
Plaintiff, .
ORIGINATING COURT:
v. CIRCUIT COURT OF FAIRFAX COUNTY
Amber Laura Heard, ORIGINATING CASE NUMBER:
Case No, CL-2019-02911
Defendant,
SUBPOENA DUCES TECUM PURSUANT
TO CPLR 3119

To: The American Civil Liberties Union, Inc., 125 Broad Street, New York, New York 10004,
¢/o Nadine Strossen, 132 W. 43rd Street, New York, New York 10036

YOU ARE HEREBY COMMANDED, pursuant to Section 3119 of the New York Civil
Practice Law and Rules (“CPLR™), all business and excuses being laid aside, to produce, or méike
available for copying, on or before September I, 2020, at the offices of Brown Rudnick LLP, 7
Times Square, New York, New York, 10036, or by e-mail to Jessica N. Meyers
(jmeyers@brownrudnick.com), true and correct copies of a.II documents requested in Exhibit A
hereto, that are in your possession, custody, or coﬁ&ol, which documents are material and
relevant to the resolution of the issues in the above-c-aptioned matter, which is now pending in
the Circuit Court of th;a Commonwealth of Virginia, Fairfax County. If you wish to make your
production in person, please call Jessica Meyers at (212) 209-4938 at least 72 hours in advance

to make arrangements.

The discovery herein sought and required is in connection with the claims and defenses in
the above-captioned action. A copy of the Complaint in this action is attached hereto as Exhibit

B.



FAILURE TO COMPLY with this SUBPOENA is punishable as a contempt of Court

and shall make you liable to the person on whose behalf this subpoena was issued for a penalty

not to exceed one hundred and fifty dollars and all damages sustained by reason of your failure

to comply.

COUNSEL OF RECORD FOR ALL PARTIES

Benjamin G. Chew, Esq. (VSB 29113)
Andrew Crawford (VSB No. §9093)
BROWN RUDNICK LLP

601 Thirteenth Street, NW
‘Washington, DC 20005

(202) 536-1700
bechew@brownrudnick.com
acrawford@brownrudnick.com

Camille M. Vasquez
BROWN RUDNICK LLP
2211 Michelson Drive

Irvine, CA 92612

(949) 752-7100
cvasquez@brownrudnick.com

Adam R. Waldman, Esq. .

THE ENDEAVOR LAW FIRM, P.C.

1775 Pennsylvania Avenue, NW, Suite 350
Washington, DC 20006

Elaine Charlson Bredehof (VSB #23766)
Carla D. Brown (VSB #44803)

Adam S. Nadelhaft (VSB #91717)
David E. Murphy (VSB #90938)
CHARLSON BREDEHOFT COHEN &
BROWN, P.C.

11260 Roger Bacon Drive, Suite 201
Reston, VA 20190

(703) 318-6800
ebredenhoft@cbeblaw.com
cbrown@cbcblaw.com
anadelhaft@cbcblaw.com
dmurphy@cbcblaw.com

Counsel for John C. Depp, II

Counsel for John C. Depp, II

Counsel for John C. Depp, 11

Counsel for Amber Laura Heard



J. Benjamin Rottenborn (VBS #84796)
Joshua R. Treece (VSB #79149)
WOODS ROGERS PLC

10 S. Jefferson Street, Suite 1400

P.O. Box 14125

Roanoke, Virginia 24011

(540) 983-7540
brottenborn@woodsrogers.com
jtreece@woodsrogers.com

Dated: July 21, 2020
New York, New York

Counsel for Amber Laura Heard

BROWN RUDNICK LLP

By: /sf Jessica N. Mevers
Jessica N. Meyers

7 Times Square

New York, New York 10036
(212) 209-4938
jmeyers@brownrudnick.com

Counsel for John C. Depp, II



EXHIBIT A
DEFINITIONS

1. “‘YOU”- and/or “YOUR?” shall mean and refer to American Civil Liberties Union,
Inc. and its agents, officers, directors, employees, and/or any other PERSON acting on its behalf,
including but not limited to YOUR affiliated entities or state or local branches.

2. “COMMUNICATION” and/or “COMMUNICATIONS” shall mean and refer to
any written and verbal exchanges between any person or persons or entities, including but not
limited to verbal conversatioﬁé, telephone calls, letters, e-mails, memoranda, reports, telegraphs,
faxes, exhibits, drawings, text messages, and any other documents which confirm or relate to the
written or verbal exchange, including applicable ELECTRONICALLY STORED
INFORMATION.

3. “ELECTRONICALLY STORED INFORMATION” means data that is stored in
an electronic medium and shall include, by way of example only, computer programs, electronic
mail (including message contents, header information and logs of electronic mail usage), output -
resulting from the use of any software program, including electronic, digital, or any other
recorded material whatsoever, including but not limited to, any notes, memoranda, videotapes,
affidavits, statements, papers, files, forms, data, tapes, printouts, letters, reports,
communications, contracts, agreements, telegrams, records, financial records, applications,
correspondence, diaries, calendars, recordings and transcriptions of recordings, voice mail
messages recorded electronically and in writing, email messages and-printouts, photographs,
diagrams, or any other writings, however produced or reproduced, word processing documents,
~ spreadsheets, databases, telephone logs, contact manager information, Internet usage files, PDF
files, .JPG files, .TIF files, .TXT files, batch files, ASCII files, and any and all miscellaneous
files and data and shall include all active data, deleted data, file fragments, metadata, native file
formats and forensic images thereof.

4, “DIVORCE ACTION?” shall mean and refer to the action entitled In re the
Marriage of Amber Laura Depp and John Christopi;er Depp 11, Los Angeles Superior Court

4



Case No. BD641052.

5. “DOCUMENT” and/or “DOCUMENTS” uniess otherwise indicated, are used in
their customarily broad sense and shall refer to and mean all writings and other tangible things of
any nature whatsoever, and shall include, but not be limited to, all writings (or drafts thereof),
medical records, drawings, graphs, charts, photographs, phone records, other data compilations
or storage devices from which information can be obtained (even if such information must be
translated into a reasonably usable form), magnetically recorded or stored information generated
by a computer, contracts, agreements, communications, correspondence, telegrams, memoranda,
records, reports, books, summaries or records of telephone conversations, summaries or records’
of personal conversations or interviews, diaries, forecasts, statistical statements, work papers,
drafis, accounts, analytical records, minutes or records of meetings or conferences, records,
reports or summaries of negotiations, brochures, pamphlets, circulars, calendars, notes, marginal
notations, bills, invoices, checks, lists, journals, advertising, and all other written, printed,
recorded or photographic matter or sound reproductions, or tangible representations of things, .
however produced or reproduced, including ELECTRONICALLY STORED INFORMATION
and all nonidentical copies of the foregoing. |

6. “MR. DEPP” means and refers to Plaintiff John C. Depp, II.

7. “MS. HEARD” means and refers to Defendant Amber Laura Heard.

8. The term “PERSON” and/or “PERSONS” shall be broadly construed to include
all natural and artificial persons.

INSTRUCTIONS

1. When necessary, the singular form of a word shall be interpreted as plural, and the
masculine gender shall be deemed to include the feminine, in order to bring within the scope any
DOCUMENTS which might otherwise be construed to be outside the scope of these Requests.
The terms, “and” and “or,” have both conjunctive and disjunctive meanings, and “each,” “any,”
and “all” mean *‘each and every.” '

2, All undefined terms shall be interpreted according to their plain and

5



cominonsense meaning.

3. DOCUMENTS should be produced as single page .tiff format files imaged at 300
dpi, with the exception of stand-alone Databases (e.g., Access), spreadsheets (e.é., Excel), slide
presentations (e.g., PowerPoint), video files, and audio files, which should be produced in native
format. Each .tiff file should have a unique name matching the Bates number labeled on the
corresponding page. Color DOCUMENTS should be produced in color.

4. DOCUMENTS should be produced with (a) a delimited data file (.dat), and (b} an
image load file (.opt and/or .lfp). Each .tiff in a production must be referenced in the
corresponding image load file. The total number of documents referenced in a production’s data
load file should match the total number of designated document breaks in the image load file for
the production.

5. DOCUMENTS should be produced with extracted metadata for each
DOCUMENT in the form of a .dat file. The metadata should include the following fields, to the
extent such fields are available in the original DOCUMENT as it originally existed in its native

format:

Bates Begin The bates label of the first page of the document
Bates_End The bates label of the last page of the document
Attach Begin The bates label of the first page of a family of documents

(e.g., email and attachment)

Attach End The bates label of the last page of a family of documents

Sent Date F of email, the sent date of the message

Sent Time For email, the sent time of the message converted to GMT
Email Author The sender of an email message (email FROM)




Recipient The recipients of an email message (email TO)
CC The recipients of a copy of an email message (email CC) |
BCC The recipients of a blind copy of an email message (email
BCC)
Custodian The custodian in whose file the document was found,
including all duplicate custodians
Datercvd Date received
Datesent Date sent
Subject E-mail subject
Author The person who created the document
Modifier The person who last modified the document
Created Tﬁc creation date of the document
Last Modified The last modified date of the document
Title The title of the document
File.Name The name of the file

File Extension

The file extension of the document

MD5Hash The MDS5 Hash Value of the document
Message 1D The Message ID of the email and/or attachment
Mailstore The name of the Mailstore in which the email and/or
attachment is contained
File_Size The size of the file
File Path Original file path of the document as it existed in the normal

7




course of business or the folder location if the

document/email is contained in a Mailstore

Number Pages - The number of pages in the document

6. All DOCUMENTS attached to and/or embedded in an e-mail and/or other
DOCUMENT must be produced contemporaneously and sequentially after the parent e-
mail/document.

7. In producing DOCUMENTS, you shall furnish ail DOCUMENTS in your
possession, custody, or pontrol. Without limitation of the term “control,” a DOCUMENT is
deemed to be in your control if you have the right to secure the DOCUMENT or a copy thereof
from another person or public or private entity having actual possession thereof, or if you have
the practical ability to obtain the DOCUMENT from a third-party, irrespective of any legal
entitlement to the DOCUMENT. If any original DOCUMENT requested is not in your
possession, custody, or control, then you are required to produce the best available copy, and to
state, to the best of your knowledge, the name and address of the person in possession and/or
control of the original. The fact that a DOCUMENT is in possession of another person or entity
does not relieve you of the obligation to produce your copy of the DOCUMENT, even if the two
DOCUMENTS are identical. In addition, any copy of a DOCUMENT shall be produced if it
differs in any respect from the original (e.g., by reason of handwritten notes or comments having
been added to copy which do not appear on the original or otherwise).

8. If responsive DOCUMENTS no longer exist because they have been destroyed,
cannot be located, or are otherwise no longer in your possession or subject to your control,
identify each DOCUMENT and describe the circumstances under which it was lost or destroyed.

9. °  All DOCUMENTS should be organized and labeled to correspond by number
with the numbered categories set forth in these Requests. If a DOCUMENT is responsive to
more than one Request, reference that DOCUMENT in your written response to each Request to

which it is responsive or in a load file identifying the same.
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10. A Redquest for a DOCUMENT shall be deemed to include a request for any and
all file folders within which the DOCUMENT was contained, transmittal sheets, cover letters,
exhibits, enclosures, or attachments to the DOCUMENT in addition to the DOCUMENT itself.

[1.  If you claim that any DOCUMENT is, in whole or in part, beyond the scope of
permissible discovery (including but not limited to any claim of privilege or confidentiality),
specify in detail each and every ground on which such claim rests and identify generally what the
document is. If you assert any claim of privilege, then at the time of production you are to
furnish a privilege log that specifically identifies each DOCUMENT (or portion) withheld by (a)
date, (b) author, (c) recipient, (d) persons copied, (€) general description of the subject matter of
the DOCUMENT, and (f) a statement of the specific privilege claimed and the basis upon which
such privilege is claimed as to each separate DOCUMENT (or portion) withheld. Thé privilege
log should contain enough specificity, but without disclosing privileged information, to allow
Plaintiffs and the Court to adequately assess the privilege claimed.

12, To the extent you consider any portion of the following Requests to be
objectionable, (a) identify the portion of the Request claimed to be objectionable, (b) state the
nature and basis of the objection, and (c¢) produce DOCUMENTS responsive to any portion of
such Request that is not claimed to be objectionable.

13.  Ifyou believe that any Request is unclear, unintelligible, or because of its
wording otherwise prevents you from responding fully to that Request, identify the ambiguity or
source of confusion and explain the definition and understanding that you relied upon in
responding. It shall be insufficient to object to a particular Request on the éroﬁnds that it is
vague, ambiguous, or otherwise unclear, and withhold DOCUMENTS on that basis without
seeking clarification.

DOCUMENT REQUESTS

REQUEST NO. 1:

All DOCUMENTS that refer, reflect, or relate to any donations made to YOU or for
YOUR benefit by MS. HEARD, from January 1, 2016 through and including the present.
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REQUEST NQO, 2:

All COMMUNICATIONS between YOU and MS. HEARD regarding any donations
made to YOU or for YOUR benefit by MS. HEARD, from January 1, 2016 through and
including the present.

REQUEST NO. 3:

All COMMUNICATIONS between YOU and MS. HEARD regarding the DIVORCE
ACTION.
REQUEST NO. 4:

All COMMUNICATIONS between YOU and MS. HEARD regarding the relationship
between MR. DEPP and MS. HEARD.
REQUEST NO. §:

All DOCUMENTS, including all COMMUNICATIONS, that refer, reflect, or relate to
any press releases, public statements, or other publicity related to any donations made by MS.

HEARD to YOU or for YOUR benefit, from January 1, 2016 through and including the present.
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EXHIBIT B




Fil.ED

VIRGINIA: CIVIL INTAKE
IN THE CIRCUIT COURT OF FAIRFAX COUNEMMAR -1 PMI2: 48
) CLERR, CIRCUIT BOURT
John C, Depp, II, )) . FAIRFAX- VA
Plaintiff, ) 02911
v. ) Civil Actiozn Qot‘ d - :
)
Amber Laura Heard, )
' )
Defendant, )
COMPLAINT

Plaintiff John C. Depp, II, a/k/a Johnny Depp, in support of his Complaint against

Defendant Amber Laura Heard hereby states the following;
NATURE OF THE ACTION

1. This defamation action arises from an op-ed published in the Washington Post by
actress Amber Heard (“Ms. Heard”). In the op-ed, Ms. Heard purported to write from the
perspective of “a public figure representing domestic abuse” and claimed that she “felt the full
force of our culture’s wrath for women who speak out” when she “spoke up against sexual
violence.”

2, Although she never identified him by name, the op-ed plainly was about (and
other media consistently characterized it as being about) Ms, Heard’s purported victimization
after she publicly accused her former husband, Johnny Depp (“Mr. Depp™), of domestic abuse in
2016, when she apﬁeared in court with an apparently battered face and obtained a temporary
restraining order against Mr. Depp on May 27,2016. The op-ed depended on the central premise
that Ms. Heard was a domestic abuse victim and that Mr, Depp perpetrated domestic violence

against her,



3. The op-ed’s clear implication that Mr, Depp is a domestic abuser is categorically
and demonstrably false. Mr. Depp never abused Ms, Heard. Her allegations against him were
false when they were made in 2016, They were part of an elaborate hoax to generate positive
publicity for Ms. Heard and advance her career, Ms, Heard’s false allegations against Mr. Depp
have been.conclusively refut-ed by two separate responding police officers, a litany of neutral
third-party witnesses, and 87 newly obtained surveillance camera videos. With a prior arrest for
violent domestic abuse and having confessed under oath to a series of violent attacks on Mr.
Depp, Ms. Heard is not a victim of domestic abuse; she is a perpetrator. Ms. Heard violently
abused Mr. Depp, just as she was caught and arrested for violently abusing her former domestic
partner.

4. | Ms, Heard’s implication in her op-ed that Mr. Depp is a domestic abuser is not
" only demonstrably false, it is defamatory per se. Ms. Heard falsely implied that Mr. Depp was
guilty of domestic violence, which is a crime involving moral turpitude. Moreover, Ms. Heard’s
false implication prejudiced Mr. Depp in his career as a film actor and incalculably (and
immediately) damaged his reputation as a public figure.

5. Unsurprisingly, Mr, Depp’s reputation and career were devastated when Ms.
Heard first accused him of domestic violence on May 27, 2916. Ms. Heard’s hoax allegations
were timed to coincide with the day that Mr. Depp’s film, Alice Through the Lookiﬁg Glass, was
released in theatres. Her op-ed, with its false implication that she was a victim of domestic
violence at the hands of Mr. Depp, brought new damage to Mr. Depp’s reputation and career. .
Mr. Depp lost movie roles and faced public scorn. Ms. Heard, an actress herself, knew precisely
the effect that her op-ed would have on Mr. Depp. And indeed, just four days afier Ms. Heard’s

op-ed was first published on December 18, 2018, Disney announced on December 22, 2018 that



it was dropping Mr. Depp from his leading role as Captain Jack Sparrow—a role that he
created—in the multi-billion-dollar-carning Pirates of the Caribbean franchise.

6. Ms. Heard published her op-ed with actual malice. She knew that Mr. Depp did
not abuse her énd that the domestic abuse allegations that she made against him in 2016 were
false. She knew that the testimony and photographic “evidence” that she presented to the court
and the supporting sworn testimony provided by her two friends were false and perjurious. Ms.
Heard knew that the truth was that she violently abused Mr, Depp—just as she vioiently abused
her prior domestic partner, which led to her arrest and booking for domestic violence, as well as
a night in jail and a mug shot. Ms. Heard revived her false allegations against Mr, Depp in the
op-ed to generate positive publicity for herself and to promote her new movie Aquaman, which
premiered across the United States and in Virginia only three days after the op-ed was first
published.

7. Mr. Depp brings this defamation action to clear his name. By this civil lawsuit,
Mr. Depp seeks to restére his reputation and establish Ms. Heard’s legal liability for continuing
her campaign to push a false narrative that he conupitted domestic violence against her. Mr.
Depp seeks an award of compensatory damages for the reputaiional harm that he suffered as a
result of Ms. Heard’§ op-ed, with its false and defamatory implication that Mr, Depp was ﬁ
domesticl abuser. Further, given the willfulness and maliciousness that Ms. Heard demonstrated
when she knowingly published the op-ed with the false implication that Mr. Depp violently
abused her, Mr. Depp also seeks an award of punitive damages.

PARTIES
8. Plaintiff John C, Depp is an individual and a resident of the State of California.

For decades, he has been one of the most prominent actors in Hollywood. Mr. Depp was married



to Ms. Heard for approximately 15 months between February 1, 2015 and May 23, 2016. They |
haci‘ no children together. Mr, Depp was the target of Ms. Heard’s false and defamatory op-ed in
the Washington Post.

9, Defendant Amber Laura Heard is an individual and a resident of the State of
California. Ms. Heard is an actress and Mr. Depp’s former wife, Ms. Heard authored and
published the defamatory op-ed in the Washington Pos.t that falsely implied that Mr. Depp

abused her during their marriage.

JURISDICTION AND VENUE

1'0. This Court has specific persénal jurisdiction over Defendant under Virginia’s
long-arm statute, Va. Code § 8.01-328.1, as well as under the Due Process Clause of the U.S.
Constitution, because, among other things, the causes of action in this Complaint arise from
Defendant transacting business in this Commonwealth and causing tortidus injury by an act or
omission in this Commonwealth, Moreover, exercising jurisdiction would not offend traditional
notions of fair play and substantial justice because Defendant could have — indeed should have
— reasonably foreseen being haled into a Virginia court to account for her false and defamatory
op-ed which was published: in a newspaper that is printed in Springfield, Virginia; in an online
cdition of the newspaper that is created on a digital platform in Virginia and routed through
servers in Virginia; in a newspaper that has wide circulation in Virginia and even publishes a
Virginia local edition in which the false and defamatory op-ed appeared; and in ..a hewspaper that
maintains two physical offices in Virginia. Further, Defendant published the false and
defamatory op-ed to promote her new movie which was in Virginia theatres for viewing by

Virginia audiences.



11.  Venue is proper in this circuit under Va. Code § 8.01-262 because the causes of
action asserted herein arose in this Circuit.
FACTS

Ms. Heard Wrote An Op-Ed In The Washington Post That Implies That She Was A Victim
Of Domestic Abuse At The Hands Of Mr. Depp

12 Mr. Depp has appeared in more than 50 films over the last three decades. He has

worldwide name recognition and has played a diverse array of iconic roles, including Edward

. Scissorhands, Willy Wonka, Captain Jack Sparrow, The Mad Hatter, Grindelwald, John

Dellinger, and Whitey Bulger. His movies have grossed over $1Q billion dollars in the United
States and around the world. He has won the People’s Choice Award 14 times.

13. Mr. Depp married Ms. Heard on February 1, 2015. The two met when Ms. Heard
was cast in Mr, Depp’s film The Rum Diary.

14, The marriage lasted only 15 months.

15.  Unbeknownst to Mr. Depp, no later than one month after his marriage to Ms.
Heard, she was spending time in a new relationship with Tesla and Space-X founder, Elon Musk.
Only one calendar month after Mr. Depp and Ms. Heard were married—while Mr, Depp was out
of the country filming in March 2015—Eastern Columbia Building personnel testified that Ms.
Heard received Musk “late at night” at Mr. Depp’s penthouse. Specifically, Ms. Heard asked
staff at the Eastern Columbia Building to give her “friend Elon™ access to the building’s parking
garage and the penthoﬁse elevator “late at night,” and they testified that they did so. Building
staff would then see Ms. Heard’s “friend Elon” leaving the building the next morning. Musk’s
first appearanc;e in Mr. Depp’s penthouse occurred shortly after Ms. Heard threw a vodka bottle

at Mr, Depp in Australia, when she learned that Mr, Depp wanted the couple to enter into a post-



nuptial agreement concerning assets in their marriage. Ms. Heard’s violently aimed projectile
virtually severed Mr, Depp’s middle finger on his right hand and shattered the bones,

16.  Mr. Depp’s marriage to Ms. Heard came to an end in May 2016. After Mr. Depp
indicated to Ms. Heard that he wanted to leave the marriage, Ms, Heard lured Mr. Depp to his
penthouse to pick up his personal items. Unaware that members of Mr. Depp’s security team
(including an 18-year veteran of the Los Angeles County Sherriff’s Department) were mere feet
away, Ms. Heard falsely began yelling “stop hitting me Johnny.” The interaction culminated
with Ms. Heard making false allegations that Mr. Depp struck her with a cell phone, hit her, and
de‘stroyed the penthouse. There were multiple eyewitnesses to this hoax. Ms. Heard’s friend
then called the police, who arrived promptly. .Upon their arrival, Ms. Heard refused to cooperate
with police or make any claims that she had been injured or assaulted, and two domestic abuse
trained police officers testified that after close inspection of Ms. Heard and the peﬁthouses, they
observed no injury to Ms, Heard or damage to the penthouses. But then, six days later, Ms.
Heard presented herself to the world with a battered face as she publicly and falsely accused Mr,
Depp of domestic violence and obtained a restraining order against him, based on false testimony
that she and her friends provided.

17.  Now there are newly obtained surveillance camera videos, dei)ositions, and other
evidence that conclusively disprove Ms. Heard’s false allegations. Although much of this
exculpatory evidence was collected by certain members Mr. Depp’s then-legal team in 2016, it
only recently came into Mr. Depp’s possession, as it had been hidden from him for a period of
years.

18.  Ms. Heard later withdrew her false domestic violence allegations and dismissed

the restraining order. She and Mr. Depp finalized their divorce in January 2017,



19.  Despite dismissing the restraining order and withdrawing the domestic abuse
allegations, Ms. Heard (and her surrogates) have continuously and repeatedly referred to her in
publications, public service announcements, social media postings, speeches, and interviews as a
victim of domestic violence, and a “survivor,” always with the clear implication that Mr. Depp
was her supposed abuser,

| 20.  Most recently, in December 2018, Ms. Heard published an op-ed in the
Washington Post that falsely implied that Ms. Heard was a victim of domestic violence at the
hands of Mr. Depp. The op-ed was first published on the Washington Post’s website on
December 18, 2018 with the title, “Amber Hea'rd: I spoke up against sexual violence — and
faced our culture’s wrgth. This has to change.” The op-ed appeared again on December 19,
2018 in the Washington Post's hardcopy edition under the title, “A Transformative Moment For
Women,” Except for their titles, the online and hard copy versions of the op-ed were
substantively identical and are referred to collectively heréin as the “Sexual Violence™ op-ed.

21, The “Sexual Violence” op-ed’s central thesis was that Ms. Heard was a victim of
domestic violence and faced personal and professional repercussions because she “spoke up”
against “sexual violence” by “a powerful man.”

22.  Although Mr. Depp was never identified by name in the “St-axual Violence™ op-ed,
Ms. Heard mal_ces clear, based on the foundations of the false accusations that she made against
Mr, Depp in court filings and subsequently reiterated in the press for years, that she was talking
about Mr, Depp and the domestic abuse allegations that she made against him in May 2016. Ms.
Heard wrote:

s  “Amber Heard: I spoke up against sexual violence — and faced our culture’s wrath.
That has to change.”



e “Then two years ago [the precise time frame of her allegations against and divorce
from Mr. Depp], I became a public figure representing domestic abuse, and I felt the
full force of our culture’s wrath for women who speak out.”

e “I had the rare vantage point of seeing, in real time, how institutions protect men
accused of abuse.”

s “I write this as a woman who had to change my phone number weekly because | was
getting death threats. For months, I rarely left my apartment, and when I did, I was
pursued by camera drones and photographers on foot, on motorcycles and in cars.
Tabloid outlets that posted pictures of me spun them in a negative light. I felt as
though T was on trial in the court of public opinion -— and my life and livelihood
depended on myriad judgments far beyond my control.”

23.  As these statements reflect, the whole op-ed proceeds from the notion—presented
as an unassailable truth—that Ms. Heard was the victim of domestic violence at the hands of Mr.
Depp. She was not. Ms. Heard is not a victim of domestic violence, and Mr. Depp is not a
perpetrator of domestic violence. And the centerpiece of Ms, Heard’s attention-seeking hoax—
her claim that Mr, Depp savagely injured her face by throwing her own iPhone at her from point
blank range as hard as he could and then continued to beat her face with other “appendages of his
body” on the evening of May 21, 2016, which caused her to have the battered face that she first
presented to the court and the world on May 27, 2016—was a poorly executed lie that
nevertheless has endured for nearly three years, The statements in her “Sexual Violence” op-ed
that imply otherwise are false and defamatory.

Ms. Heard Was Not A Victim Of Doméstic Violence: She Was A Perpetrator

24,  Long before Ms. Heard became a self-described “public figure representing
domestic abuse™ based on her false domestic violence allegations against Mr. Depp, Ms. Heard

was in an abusive relationship. But Ms. Heard was not the victim in that relationship. She was

the abuser.



25.  On September 14, 2009, police officers at the Seattle-Tacoma International
Airport witnessed Ms, Heard physically assault her then-domestic pariner, Tasya van Ree. Ms,
Heard grabbed Ms. van Ree by the arm, hit Ms. van Ree in the arm, and yanked Ms. van Ree’s
necklace off her neck. Ms. Heard was arrested. She was bocked for misdemeanor domestic
violence, a mug shot was taken of her, and she spent the night in jail. The following day, the
Seattle-based prosecutor declined to press charges against Ms. Heard, but only because both she
and her domestic abuse victim were California residents who were merely passing through
Washington state.

26.  Since casting herself as a domestic abuse victim, Ms, Heard has attempted to
blame misogyny and homophobia for her domestic violence arrest—claiming that she was
arrested “on a trumped up charge” because she was in a same-sex relationship. In truth, the
police officer who arrested Ms, Heard for domestic violence was both a woman and a lesbian
activist, who publicly said so after she was publicly disparaged by Ms. Heard.

27.  Ms, Heard’s violent domestic abuse did not end when her relationship with Ms.
van Ree ended. Ms. Hez;rd committed multiple acts of domestic violence against Mr. Depp -
during their 'marr.iagc. Ms. Heard’s physical abuse of Mr. Depp is documented by eyewitness
accounts, photographs, and even Ms. Heard’s own admissions under oath.

28.  In one particularly gruesome episode that occurred only one month into their
marriaée, Ms. Heard shattered the bones in the tip of Mr. Depp’s right middle finger, almost
completely cufting it off. Ms. Heard threw a glass vodka bottle at Mr. Depp—one of many
projectiles that she launched at him in this and other instances. The bottle shattered as it came

into contact with Mr. Depp’s hand, and the broken glass and impact severed and shattered Mr.



Depp’s finger. Mr. Depp’s finger had to be surgically reattached. Ms. Heard then disseminated
false accounts of this incident, casting Mr, Depp as the perpetrator of his own injury.

29.  Ms. Heard’s domestic abuse of Mr. Depp continued unabated throughout their 15-
month marriage. Ms. Heard threw dangerous objects at Mr. Depp, and also kicked and punched
him with regularity,

30. Shockingly, Ms. Heard even has used one of her attacks on Mr, Depp to push her
false narrative that she is a domestic abuse victim. In her false affidavit to obtain a restraining
order against Mr, Depp, Ms, Heard recounted a domestic viclence incident that occurred between
her and Mr. Depp on April 21, 2016 and reversed the roles, claiming that she was the victim .
when in truth she was the perpetrator. Ms, Heard falsely claimed thét Mr. Depp physically
attacked her, threw glasses at her, and broke a champagne bottle in their penthouse after her
thirtieth birthday celebration on April 21, 2016. In truth, Ms. Heard—angry with Mr. Depp
because he was late to her birthday celebration due to a business meeting — punched Mr. Depp
twice in the face as he lay in bed reading, forcing him to flee their penthouse to avoid further
domestic violence at the hands of Ms. Heard. Mr. Depp’s security detail member, Sean Bell (an
18-year veteran of the Los Angeles County Sherriff’s Department) picked up Mr. Depp
immediately after Ms. Heard assaulted him and witnessed firsthand the aftermath and damage to
Mr. Depp’s face. On other occasions—after Ms, Heard violently attacked Mr. Depp in
December 2015—Mr. Bett insisted on taking ‘photographs to document the damage to Mr.
Depp’s face inflicted by Ms. Heard.

31.  Thus, contrary to the false and defamatory implication in her “Sexual Violence;’
op-ed, Ms. Heard was never a victim of domestic violence at the hands of Mr. Depp. Ms. Heard

herself is a domestic abuser, who committed multiple acts of domestic violence against Mr. Depp
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during their marriage, in addition to the domestic abuse that she perpetrated against her former
partner.
Ms. Heard’s Domestic Abuse Allegations Against Mr. Depp Are False And Have Been
Refuted Conclusively By Police, Neutral Third-Party Witnesses, and
87 Surveillance Videos

l32. Ms. Heard did not “[speak] up against sexual violence” as she claimed in her op-
ed. She made false allegations of domestic abuse against Mr. Depp to execute her hoax. -

33.  The centerpiece of Ms. Heard’s false abuse allegations is an incident that she
claimed took place around 7:15 pm on Saturday, May 21, 2016 at Mr. Depp’s penthouse in the
Eastern Columbia Building in downtown Los Angeles. After Ms. Heard lured Mr. Depp to pick
up personal iterns from his own penthouse, Ms. Heard, sitting on the sofa with her friend, Raciuel
Pennington, and talking on the phone with her friend, 10 Tillett Wright, claimed that Mr. Depp
“grabbed the cell phdne, wound up his arm like a baseball pitcher and threw the cell phone at me
striking my cheek and eye with great force.” Ms. Heard also claimed that Mr. Depp further
battered her face with some “appendage of his body” and then used a magnum-sized bottle of
wine to destroy the penthouse, spilling wine, broken glass, and other items around the penthouse.
“Penthouse 3 was destroyed” by Mr. Depp’s bottle swinging, claimed Ms. Heard in her sworn
testimony. Her two friends testified accordingly, Ms. Heard used these allegations to obtain a
temporary restraining order against Mr. Depp on May 27, 2016, appearing in court six days after
the alleged incident with the first appearance of a battered face, notwithstanding that a litany of
people witnessed her throughout the week with no injury and building surveillance videos
similarly showed her uninjured. |

34.  Mr. Depp, it is worth noting, left Los Angeles for many weeks almost

immediately after the alleged incident. And it is also worth noting that building personnel
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testified under oath that they again facilitated Elon Musk’s nighttime visits to Mr. Depp’s
penthouse to visit Ms. Heard, key-fobbing him in and out of the building proximate to the time
Ms. Heard presented her batten;,d face to the public and the court on May 27, 2016.

35.  Mr. Depp has consistently and unequivocally denied Ms. Heard’s domestic abuse
allegations. They also have been refuted conclusively by multiple, neutral third-party witnesses.

36. Ms. Heard’s friend and neighbor, Isaac Baruch, gave a declaration that he
repeatedly interacted with Ms. Heard, at close range, without makeup, and utterly unmarked and
uninjured in the days between May 22 and May 27, 2016, He further stated in his declaration
that on June 3, after confronting Ms. Heard about how upset he was at her false abuse
allegations: “Amber then told me that she did not want anything from Johnny and that it was the
lawyers who \’;’GI'C doing all of this.”

37.  Police went to Mr. Depp’s penthouse on May 21, 2016, immediately after the
incident was alleged to have occurred. They were dispatched after Ms. Heard’s friend, Mr.
Wright, called 911 to report what the police dispatch log describes as a “verbal argument only”
between a husband and wife. Two officers, who are highly trained in domestic violence, arrived
at the penthouse shortly after Ms. Heard later claimed that Mr. Depp struck her in the face with a
cell phone, further hit her face, and then “destroyed™ his own penthouse by swinging a magnum-
sized bottle of wine into other objects throughout that penthouse. Officer Melissa Saenz is a
veteran Los Angeles Police officer who is charged with training other police officers and
personally has responded to “over a hundred” domestic violence calls. Officer Tyler Hadden is a
junior police officer, but focused on domestic violence at .the police academy and received

extensive training in how to detect that particular crime.
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38.  Both Officer Saenz and Officer Hadden testified under oath that they closely
observed Ms. Heard’s face in good light on May 21, 2016 and saw no signs of any injury. In the
police officers’ face-to-face interactions with-Ms. Heard immediately after she supposedly was
struck in the face with a cell phone and then further beaten in the face by Mr. Depp, the police
officers saw no red marks, no bruising, and no swelling anywhere on Ms. Heard’s face. Both
Officer Saenz and Officer Hadden also testitied under oath that, when they went room-to-room
in the penthouses to investigate, they saw no broken glasé, no spilled wine, and no vandalism or
property damage of any kind. This is in contrast to Ms. Heard’s later claim that Mr. Depp
“destroyed” penthouse 3 and caused serious, visible injuries to her face. It also directly
contradicts Ms, Heard’s friend’s testimonylf regarding what Ms. Heard’s face looked like at that
time: “Just the whole side of her face was like swolled up (sic) and red and puffy ... and
progressively getting worse.”

39.  There was no probable cause to believe that a crime had been committed,
according to Officer Saenz’s testimony, because Ms. Heard had no injuries and claimed to have
no injuries, and there V;.ras no property damage in the penthouse or signs of any altercation.

40,  Multiple pec;ple who work professionally in the Eastern Columbia Building where
the penthouse is located, and who do not know Mr. Depp personally, also have unambiguously
debunked Ms. Heard’s claim that her face was injured on May 21, 2016 and that she had any
sign of injury in the six days before May 27, 2016. Three people, the building’s conciérge, head
of front desk and head of security, profoundly testified under oath about their face-to-face
interactions with Ms. Heard between May 22, 2016 (the day after Ms. Heard claims that Mr.
Depp hit her and struck her in the eye and on the cheek .with a cell phone) and May 27, 2016 (the

day Ms. Heard appeared in public and went to court fo get a restraining order against Mr. Depp
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with what appeared to be a battered face). Every one of those three people testified under oath
that they saw Ms. Heard up close in the days after the supposed attack and her face was not
injured before the day she obtained the restraining order against Mr. Depp.

41.  Cornelius Harrell is a concierge at the Eastern Columbia Building and was
working at the front desk at 1 pm on the afternoon of Sunday, May 22, 2016. Mr. Harrell saw
Ms, Heard face-to-face that afternoon—Iless than 24 hours after she claims that she was struck in
the face by a cell phone thrown by Mr, Depp and hit in the face by Mr. Depp.

42, In an interaction that was also captured by the Eastern Columbia Building’s
surveillance cameras and saved, Ms. Heard approached Mr. Harrell to pick up a package that had
been delivered to her. Ms. Heard accompanied Mr. Harrell to the package room to identify
which package she wanted because more than one had been delivered to her. As they were
looking through her packages, Mr. Harrell and Ms. Heard were inside the package room
together. The package room at the Eastern Columbia Building is “no bigger than a walk-in
closet,” so Mr, Harrell had an opportunity to observe Ms. Heard’s face up close, the day after she
claimed she was battered by Mr. Depp in the face.

43, Mr. Harrell testified under oath that, on May 22, 2016, Ms. Heard did not have
any bruises, cuts, scratches, or swelling on her face and that “nothing appeared out of the
ordinary about Ms. Heard’s face on May 22, 2016.” In fact, Mr. Harrell testified that he was
struck by how “beautiful,” “radiant,” and “refreshed” Ms. Heard looke(i, noting that, if she was
wearing any makeup at all, it was “minimal.” Mr. Harrell unequivocally testified that when he
was interacting one-on-one in close quarters with Ms, Heard on May 22, 2016 for about 8
minutes, that he did not see any evidence to suggest that she had been the victim of domestic

violence the day before. Mr. Harrell does not know Mr. Depp personally.
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44,  Alejandro Romero also works at the Eastern Columbia Building, manning the
front desk and monitoring the security cameras from 4:00 pm to 1:00 am Monday-Friday. Mr.
Romero had “hundreds” of.in-person interactions with Ms. Heard when she resided in the
penthouse, in addifion (o observing her innumerable times on surveillance foc;tage captured by
the Eastern Columbia Building’s security cameras. Mr. Romero testified under oath about two
specific face-to-face interactions that he had with Ms. Heard in the days after she claimed that
Mr. Depp hit her in the face and struck her cheek and eye with a cell phone that he threw.

45.  Mr. Romero testified that on the “Monday or Tuesday” evening “after the police
were called”—May 23 or 24, 2016—he was approached at the front desk by Ms. Heard and her
friend, Ms. Pennington, who also resided in the penthouse. Ms. Heard and Ms. Pennington
asked Mr. Romero to accompany them to the pénthouse because they were afraid that someone
had tried to get inside the penthouse. Mr. Romero discounted this concern becausé he had been
monitoring security footage and saw no one trying to access the penthouse. Nevertheless, Mr,
Romero agreed to accompany Ms. Heard and Ms. Pennington to the pehthouse and confirm that
it was secure. He left the front desk with Ms. Heard and Ms. Pennington, rode up to the 13th
floor with them, and went inside the penthouse with them. Throughout this interaction, Mr.
Romero testified under oath that he had “a full shot” of Ms. Heard’s face and “a good visual” of
Ms, Heard’s face and saw no bruises, cuts, swelling, or marks of any kind.

46,  Mr. Romero interacted with Ms. Heard again on the evening of May 25, 2016
when she came to the front desk to retrieve a key to the penthouse that she had left at the front
desk. Again, in this face-to-face interaction, Mr. Romero testified that he saw no bruises, cuts,

swelling, or marks of any kind on Ms. Heard’s face.

15



47, Based on his in-person interactions with Ms. Heard, Mr. Romero, who does not
know Mr. Depp personally, testified under oath that he “couldn’t believe” Ms. Heard’s domestic
abuse allegations against Mr, Depp because:

It was like — it was like I said, we watched the news and we saw the pictures. 'And I saw
the pictures and the next day I saw her, I was like, come on, really? I couldn’t believe it.

It was — I saw her in person. . . ... The pictures ] saw on the news, she got like a big
mark on her — on her eyes and her cheek. And when [ saw her in person, I didn’t see
anything.

48, T_rinity Esparza, the daytime conciergé at the Eastern Columbia Building who
works at the front desk from 8:00 am to 4:00 pm Monday-Friday, echoed Mr. Romero’s disbelief
at Ms. Heard’s account. Ms. Esparza, who does not know Mr. Depp personally, testified under
oath that she thought that Ms, Heard’s allegation that she had been assaulted by Mr, Depp was
“false” because “I saw her several times [in the days after the alleged attack] and [ didn’t see that
[mark] on her face.”

49.  Ms. Esparza had multiple face-to-face interactions with Ms. Heard in the days
after Ms. Heard claimed that Mr. Depp hit her and struck her in the eye and cheek with a cell
phone. Ms. Esparza saw Ms. Hea‘rd in-person on Monday, May 23, 2016; Tuesday, May 24,
2016; Wednesday, May 25, 2016; and Friday, May 27, 2016. Ms. Esparza testified under oath
that, when she saw Ms. Heard on the Monday, Tuesday, and Wednesday after the alleged attack,
Ms. Heard was not wearing makeup and that Ms. Heard had no facial injuries. There were no
bruises or cuts on Ms. Heard’s face, according to Ms. Esparza’s testimony. Ms. Esparza testified
- under oath that she sa no indication that Ms. Heard had been hit or struck.

50.  Then, on Friday, May 27, 2016, Ms. Esparza testified under oath that Ms. Heard
suddenly “had a red cut underneath her right eye and red marks by her eye.” Then Ms, Esparza

learned from media reports that Ms, Heard had obtained a domestic violence restraining order
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against Mr, Depp on May 27, 2_016. Because Ms. Esparza had seen Ms. Heard so many times
that week without any marks on her face, Ms. Esparza thought “the time didn’t add up and so 1
was questioning . . . the mark on her face and the allegations that were made.”

51.  Ms. Esparza was so troubled by the sudden appearance of “a mark” on Ms,
Heard’s face on fhe very day that Ms. Heard obtained a restraining order against Mr. Depp—but
six days after the alleged incident—that Ms. Esparza went back and looked at security video
footage and talked to others who worked in the Eastern Columbia Building to see if the “mark™
might have been on Ms. Heard’s face earlier. It wasn’t.

52. Mr. Romero and Mr. Harrell confirmed to Ms. Esparza that Ms. Heard did not
have any injuries on her face when they interacted with her.

53.  Ms. Esparza also did not see the “mark” on Ms, Heard’s face when she went back
and reviewed surveillance videos from the days after Ms, Heﬁrd claims that Mr, Depp hit her and
struck her in the face with a cell phone that he threw,

54,  But Ms, Esparza did see something else on the surveillance video. On a video
from the evening of Méy 24, 2016, three nights after Ms. Heard alleged that she was attacked by
Mr. Depp, Ms. Esparza saw Ms, Heard, her sister, Whitney Heard, and Ms. Heard’s friend and
corroborating witness, Ms. Pennington, on the mezzanine level of the Eastern Columbia
Building. In the surveillance video, Ms. Esparza testified under oath that she saw Whitney.
Heard pretend to punch her sister in the face. Then Ms. Heard, Ms. Pennington, and Whitney
Heard all laughed. Ms. Esparza testified that she thought how Ms. Heard, Ms. Pennington, and
Whitney Heard were acting on the surveillance video was “wrong,” and it only made her
question more how Ms. Heard ended up with a “mark” on her face three days later, on Friday,

May 27, Ms. Esparza knew that Mr, Depp had left Los Angeles for work on the day of the
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alleged incident “and he did not return and so 1 was questioning how those marks got on her face
on Friday,” Ultimately, Ms. Esparza testified under oath that she was forced to conclude that
“whatever happened to [Ms. Heard’s] face did not happen on Saturday [May 21]”, as Ms. Heard
had alleged.

55. Ms. Esparza is not the only professional employee of the Eastern Columbia
Building to witness the “fake punch” video. Brandon Patterson, the General Manager of the
Eastern Columbia Building, provided a declaration about it:

One of the surveillance videos, taken the evening of Tuesday, May 24, showed Amber

Heard, her sister Whitney Heard, and her friend Raquel Pennington entering the

building’s mezzanine. Trinity Esparza showed me a video at the front desk with a pretend

punch to the face from one of Miss Heard’s two companions, and the three of them
laughed hard. They then enter the penthouse elevator, where Ms. Heard’s face was
clearly visible, there were similarly no bruises, cuts, redness, swelling visible on Ms.

Heard’s face.

56.  Later, in the media firestorm concerning Ms, Heard’s domestic abuse allegations
against Mr. Depp, Ms. Heard learned that there were media reports stating that people who
worked at the front desk of the Eastern Columbia Building had seen Ms. Heard without any
marks on her face, as-indeed was their testimony. Mr. Patterson, the General Manager of the
Eastern Columbia Building, summarized the testimony of building staff in his own declaration:

Ms. Heard was repeatedly observed in the Eastern Columbia Building in the multiple

days following the alleged assault without bruises, cuts, redness, swelling or any other

injuries to her face. These observations were made by people working at the front desk at
the Eastern Columbia Building who interacted with Ms. Heard in person and also saw
images of her on the building surveillance cameras. '

57.  Approximately a week after she made her domestic abuse allegations against Mr.
Depp, Ms. Heard approached Ms. Esparza and Mr. Patterson, and asked the two of them to give

a statement to Ms. Heard’s “friend” at People Magazine. Ms. Heard wanted Ms. Esparza and

Mr, Patterson “to help retract the statement that was given to the press stating that the front desk
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had released this information [about seeing Ms. Heard with no injuries to her face] and [Ms.
Heard] asked if we would clarify it and let them know that we, in fact, would never release that
information on any resident.” Mr. Patterson and Ms. Esparza refused to give the statement and
directed Ms. Heard to the Eastern Columbia Building’s lawyer.

58.  Ms. Esparza testified that she was “not comfortable” with “the statement that [Ms.
Heard] was proposing that [the building] make to People Magazine, that the building would not
have said they saw [Ms. Heard] without marks on her face” “because that would have been a lie”
as “the front desk did, in fact, see [Ms. Heard] prior to Friday [May 27, 2016] without marks on
her face,”

59.  The people working at the front desk of the Eastern Columbia Building did not
see any injuries to Ms. Heard’s face because there were no injuries to Ms. Heard’s face. Ms.
Heard’s allegations that Mr. Depp’s battered her was a poorly executed hoax.

60.  The police officers, who responded to the penthouse on May 21, 2016
immediately after the alleged attack, saw no signs that Ms. Heard had been hit or struck by a cell
phone or that a magnum-sized bottle of wine had “destroyed” the penthouse because flrase
things never happened. Therc was no probable cause to believe a crime had been committed
because no criﬁ:e had been committed against Ms. Heard by Mr. Depp.

61.  Ms. Heard’s domestic violence allegations against Mr. Depp were false, as is her
portrayal of herself in her “Sexual Violence” op-ed as a domestic violence victim and her
portrayal of Mr., Depp as a domestic violence perpetrator and “monster.”

Ms, Heard Acted With Actual Matice When She Implied In Her “Sexual Violence” Op-Ed
That She Was A Victim Of Domestic Abuse At The Hands Of Mr. Depp
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62.  Ms. Heard acted with actual malice when she published her false and defamatory
“Sexual Violence” op-ed and implied that she was a victim of domestic abuse at the hands of Mr,
Depp.

63. Ms, Heard knew that she was not the domestic abuse victim, but the domestic
abuser.

64.  Ms. Heard knew that her domestic abuse allegatidns against Mr, Depp were false
and that she leveled them and enlisted her friends to act as surrogates for her lies, as part of an
elaborate hoax to generate positive public;ity for herself.

65.  Ms. Heard also knew that her elaborate hoax worked: as a result of her false
allegations against Mr. Depp, Ms. Heard became a darling of the #MeToo movement, was the
first actress named a Human Rights Champion of the United Nations Human Rights Office, was
‘appointed ambassador on women’s rights at the American Civil Liberties Union, and was hired
by L*Oréal Paris as its global spokesperson.

66.  Because of the past success that her false domestic abuse allegations against Mr
Depp had brought her, Ms. Heard revived the false allegations to promote her new movie.

67.  Aguaman, Ms, Heard’s first leading role in a big-buciget studio film, premiered in
theatres across the United States (and in Virginia) on December 21, 2019. The movie ended up
making over $1 billion at the box office globally. |

68.  Tellingly, just days before the premicre, Heard published her “Sexual Violence”
op-ed with its false implication that she was a domestic abuse victim at the hands of Mr, Depp on
December 18, 2019 in the Washington Post’s online edition and on December 19, 2019 in the
Washington Post's hardcopy edition. The op-ed in the Washington Post’s online edition was

accompanied by a picture of Ms. Heard on the red carpet at Aquaman’s Los Angeles premiere,
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Mr. Depp’s Reputation And Career Suffer As A Result Of Vs, Heard’s
False And Defamatory Op-Ed

69. As a result of Ms. Heard’s false domestic abuse allegations, Mr. Depp’s
reputation and career sustained immense damage.

70. Ms. Heard, an actress herself, is well aware of the négative effect that false
domestic abuse allegations have on Mr, Depp’s career.

71.  Mr. Depp lost roles in movies because of the false allegations that Ms. Heard
made against him. When Mr. Depp was cast in films, there were public outcties for the
filmmakers to recast his roles.

72.  Mr. Depp endured the public. scorn caused by Ms, Heard’s false domestic abuse
allegations for more than two years. But he was weathering the storm and had a successful film
release in November 2019, In fact, that movie was still playing on screens across Virginia when
Ms. Heard revived the false domestic abuse allegations by publishing her “Sexual Violence” op-
ed in the Washington Post.

73.  The reaction to Ms. Heard’s false and defamatory op-ed was swift and severe.
Just two days after the op-ed appeared in the Washington Post’s online edition, Disney publicly
announced that Mr, Depp would no longer be a part of the Pirates of the Caribbean franchise.
Mr, Depp’s turn as Captain Jack Sparrow in the Pirates of the Caribbean films is one of Mr.
Depp’s most iconic roles, and generated billions of dollars for Disney. Nevertheless, he was

"denied an opportunity to reprise that role immediately on the heels of Ms. Heard’s false and
defamatory op-ed.

COUNT ONE—DEFAMATION FOR STATEMENTS IN MS. HEARD’S DECEMBER
18,2018 OP-ED IN THE ONLINE EDITION OF THE WASHINGTON POST
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74,  Plaintiff repeats and re-alleges each of the foregoing paragraphs as if set forth
fully herein.

75. Ms. Heard published the “Sexual Violence” op-ed on the December 18, 2018.
The article was published to a worldwide audience on the Washington Post’s website. A true
and correct copy of the online edition of the “Sexual Violence” op-ed is attached hereto and
incorporated by reference as Exhibit A,

_ 76.  The “Sexual Violence” 6p-ed contained‘the following false and defamatory

statements concerning Mr. Depp: |

¢ “Amber Heard: I spoke up against sexual vioclence — and faced our culture’s wrath.
That has to change.”

» “Then two years ago, I became a public figure représenﬁng domestic abuse, and I felt
the full force of our culture’s wrath for women who speak out.”

e “T had the rare vantage point of seeing, in real time, how institutions protect men
accused of abuse.”

» “T write this as a woman who had to change my phone number weekly becausc I was
getting death threats. For months, 1 rarely left my apartment, and when [ did, I was
pursued by camera drones and photographers on foot, on motorcycles and in cars.
Tabloid outlets that posted pictures of me spun them in a negative light. I felt as
though I was on frial in the court of public opinion — and my life and livelihood
depended on myriad judgments far beyond my control.”

77.  These statements are of and concerning Mr. Depp, as he is Ms. Heard’s former
husband and she publicly (and falsely) accused him of domestic abuse in May 2016. Moreover,
Ms. Heard intended to refer to Mr. Depp in these statements, and those who know Mr. Depp or
who read the “Sexual Violence” op-ed understood these statements to be about Mr. Depp.

78. These statements, which imply that Ms. Heard was the victim of domestic

violence at the hands of Mr. Depp, are false:
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a. Mr. Depp did not comnﬂt “domestic abuse” or “sexual violeﬁce” against Ms,
Heard. Ms. Heard’s allegation that Mr, Depp violently attacked her on May 21,
2016 has been refuted conclusivelf by police, neutral third-party witnesses, and
87 newly obtained surveillance camera videos.

b. Ms. Heard is not a victim of domestic violence; rather, she is a perpetrator. Ms,
Heard was arrested for domestic violence against her former domestic partner in
2009. Ms. Heard also committed multiple acts of domestic violence against Mr,
Depp, some of which she has confessed to under oath,

79.  The substantial danger of injury to Mr. Depp’s reputation from Ms. Heard’s false
statements is readily apparent. Such statements would tend to so harm the reputation of another
as to lower him in the estimation of the community or to deter third persons from associating orl
dealing with him.

80. By publishing these false statements, Ms. Heard caused harm to Mr. Depp’s
reputation. |

81.  Atthe time of publication, Ms. Heard knew these statements were false.

82,  Ms. Heard’s false statements are defamatory per se because they impute to Mr,
Depp the commission of a crime involving moral turpitude for which Mr. Depp, if the charge
was true, could be indicted and punished. Moreover, Ms. Heard’s false statements prejudice Mr.
Depp in his profession as a film actor. Mr. Depp therefore is entitled to presumed damages.

83.  Asadirect and proximate result of these false statements by Ms. Heard, Mr. Depp
has suffered damages, including, inter alia, injury to his reputation, harm to his ability to carry
on his profession, embarrassment, humiliation, and emotional distress, in an amount lo be

determined at trial.
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84. Ms. Heard’s actions were malicious, willful, and wanton, and evidence a
conscious disregard for Mr, Depp’s rights. Accordingly, punitive damages are appropriate.
WHEREFORE, Plaintiff respectfuily requests that the Court enter an award in Plaintiff's
favor and against Defendant, as follows:
(D awarding Mr. Depp compensatory damages of not less than $ 50,000,000, or in
such édditgonal amount to be proven at trial;
(2) awarding Mr. Depp punitive damages to the maximum extént permitted by the
laws of this Commonwealth, but not less than § 350,000;

(3) awarding Mr. Depp all of his expenses and costs, including attorneys® fees; and

4 granting such other and further relief as the Court deems appropriate.

COUNT TWO—DEFAMATION FOR STATEMENTS IN MS. HEARD’S DECEMBER
19,2018 OP-ED IN THE PRINT EDITION OF THE WASHINGTON POST

85.  Plaintiff repeaté and re-alleges each of the foregoing paragraphs as if set forth
ﬁxlly herein. '

86, Ms. Heard published the “Sexual Violence” op-ed in the December 19, 2018
hardcopy edition of the Washington Post, which the Washington Post distributes to readers in
Virginia, across the nation, and around the world. A true and correct copy of the hardcopy
edition of the “Sexual Violence” op-ed is attached hereto and incorporated by reference as
Exhibit B.

| 87.  The “Sexual Violence” op-ed contained the following false and defamatory
statements concerning Mr, Depp:

* “Amber Heard: I spoke up against sexual violence -— and faced our culture’s wrath.
That has to change.”
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e “Then two years ago, I became a public figure representing domestic abuse, and I felt
the full force of our culture’s wrath for women who speak out.”

» “I had the rare vantage point of seeing, in real time, how institufions protect men
accused of abuse.”

o “I write this as a woman who had to -change my phone number weekly because I was
getting death threats. For months, I rarely left my apartment, and when [ did, I was
pursued by camera drones and photographers on foot, on motorcycles and in cars.
Tabloid outlets that posted pictures of me spun them in a negative light. I felt as

- though I was on trial in the court of public opinion — and my life and livelihood
depended on myriad judgments far beyond my control.”

88.  These statements are of and concerning Mr. Depp, as he is Ms, Heard’s former
husband and she publicly (and falsely) accused him of domestic abuse in May 2016. Moreover,
Ms. Heard intended to refer to Mr. Depp in these statements, and those who know Mr. Depp or
who read the “Sexual Violence” op-ed understood these statements to be about Mr. Depp.

89.  These statements, which imply-that Ms, Heard was the victim of domestic
violence at the hands of Mr. Depp, are false:

a. Mr. Depp did not commit “domestic abuse” or “sexual viclence” against Ms.
Heard, Ms. Heard’s allegation that Mr, Depp violently attacked her on May 21,
2016 has been refuted conclusively by police, neutral third-party witnesses, and
87 newly obtained surveillance camera videos.

b. Ms. Heard is not a victim of domestic violence; rather, she is a perpetrator. Ms.
Heard was arrested for domestic violence against her former partner in 2009. Ms.
Heard also committed multiple acts of domestic violence against Mr. Depp.

90.  The substantial danger of injury to Mr. Depp’s reputation from Ms. Heard’s false
statements is readily apparent. Such statements would tend to so harm the reputation of another .

as to lower him in the estimation of the community or to deter third persons from associating or

dealing with him.
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91. By publishing these false statements, Ms. Heard caused harm to Mr. Depp’s
reputation.

92. At the time of publication, Ms. Heard knew these statements were false.

93.  Ms. Heard’s false statements are defamatory per se because they impute to Mr.
Depp the commission of a crime involving moral turpitude for which Mr. Depp, if the charge
was true, could be indicted and punished. Moreover, Ms. Heard’s false statements prejudice Mr.
Depp in his profession as a film actor. Mr. Depp therefore is entitled to presumed damages,

94.  Asadirect and proximate result of these false statements by Ms. Heard, Mr. Depp
has suffered damages, including, inter alia, injury to his reputation, harm to his ability to carry
on his profession, embarrassment, humiliation, and emotional distress, in an amount to be
determined at trial.

95. Ms. Heard’s actions were malicious, willful, and wanton, and evidence a
conscious disregard for Mr, Depp’s rights. Accordingly, punitive damages are appropriate.

WHEREFORE, Plaintiff respectfully requests that the Court enter an award in Plaintiff's
favor and against Defendant, as follows:

(1) awarding Mr. Depp compensatory damages of not less than $ 50,000,000, or in

such additional amount to be proven at trial;

(2} awarding Mr. Depp punitive damages to the maximum extent permitted by the

laws of this Commonwealth, but not less than $ 350,000;

(3) awarding Mr. Depp all of his expenses and costs, including attoreys’ fees; and

4 granting such other and further relief as the Court deems appropriate.

COUNT THREE—DEFAMATION FOR STATEMENTS IN MS. HEARD’S OP-ED

WHICH HEARD REPUBLISHED WHEN SHE TWEETED A LINK
TO THE OP-ED ON DECEMBER 19, 2018
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96.  Plaintiff repeats-and re-alleges each of the foregoing paragraphs as if set forth -
fully herein.

97.  Ms. Heard published the “Sexual Violence™ op-ed in the December 18, 2018
online edition of the Washington Post., The following day, Ms. Heard tweeted a link to the op-
ed. A true and correct copy of Ms, Heard’s tweet of the link to the “Sexual Violence” op-ed is
attached hereto and incorporated by reference as Exhibit C.

98. The “Sexual Violence” op-ed contained the following fal;c.e and defamatory
statements concerning Mr. Depp:

» “Amber Heard: I spoke up against sexual violence — and faced our culture’s wrath.
That has to change.”

¢ “Then two years ago, I became a public figure representing domestic abuse, and I felt
the full force of our culture’s wrath for women who speak out,”

» “I had the rare vantage point of seeing, in real time, how institutions protect men
accused of abuse.”

e “T write this as a woman who had to change my phone number weekly because I was
getting death threats. For months, I rarely left my apartment, and when I did, I was
pursued by camera drones and photographers on foot, on motorcycles and in cars,
Tabloid outlets that posted pictures of me spun them in a negative light. I felt as
though I was on trial in the court of public opinion — and my life and livelihood
depended on myriad judgments far beyond my control.” '

99.  These statements are of and concerning Mr. Depp, as he is Ms. Heard’s former
husband and she publicly (and falsely) accused him of domestic abusc in May 2016, Moreover,
Ms. Heard intended to refer to Mr. Depp in these statements, and those who know Mr. Depp or
who read the “Sexual Violence” op-ed understood these statements to be about Mr. Depp.

100. These statements, which imply that Ms., Heard was the victim of domestic

violence at the hands of Mr. Depp, are false:

27



a. Mr. Depp did not commit “domestic abuse” or “sexual violence” against Ms.
Heard. Ms. Heard’s allegatioh that Mr. Depp violenily attackéd her on May 21,
2016 has been refuted conclusively by police, multiple, neutral third-party
witnesses, and 87 newly obtained surveillance camera videos.

b. Ms. Heard is not a victim of domestic violence; rather,I she is a perpetrator. Ms.
Heard was arrested for domestic violence against her former partner in 2009. Ms.
Heard also committed multiple acts of domestic violence against Mr. Depp.

101. The substantial danger of injury to Mr. Depp’s reputation from Ms. Heard’s false
statements is readily apparent, Such statements would tend to so harm the repﬁtation of another
as to lower him in the estimation of the community or to deter third persons from associating or
dealing with him.

102. By publishing these false statements, Ms, Heard caused harm to Mr. Depp’s
reputation,

103, At the time of publication, Ms. Heard knew these statements were false.

104. Ms. Heard’s false statements are defamatory per se beéause they impute to Mr.
Depp the commission of a crime inveolving moral turpitude for which Mr. Depp, if the charge
was true, could be indicted énd punished. Moreover, Ms. Heard’s false statements prejudice Mr.
Depp in his profession as a film actor, Mr., Depp therefore is entitled to presumed damages.

105. As adirect and proximate result of these false statements by Ms. Heard, Mr. Depp
has suffered damages, including, infer alia, injury to his reputation, harm to his ability to carry
on his profession, embarrassment, humiliation, and emotional diétreés, in an amount to be

determined at trial.
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106,

Ms. Heard’s actions were malicious, willful, and wanton, and evidence a

conscious disregard for Mr. Depp’s rights. Accordingly, punitive damages are appropriate.

_ WHEREFO.RB, Plaintiff respectfully requests that the Court enter an award in Plaintiff’s

favor, and against Defendant, as follows:

() awarding Mr. Depp compensatory damages of not less than $50,000,000, or in
such additional amount to be proven at trial;

(2)  awarding Mr. bepp punitive damages to the maximum extent permitted by the
laws of this Commonwealth, but no less than $350,000;

(3) av;rarding Mr. Depp all expenses and costs, including attormeys’ fees; and

(4)  such other and further relief as the Court deems appropriate.

JURY TRIAL DEMAND

Plaintiff John C. Depp, II hereby demands a jury trial on all issues so triable.

Dated: March 1, 2019

Brittany Whitesell Biles (pro hac vice application forthcoming)
STEIN MITCHELL BEATO & MISSNER LLP

901 Fifteenth Street, N.W.

Suite 700

Washington, D.C. 20005

Telephone: (202) 601-1602

Facsimile: (202) 296-8312

Email: bbiles@steinmitchell.com
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Facsimile: (202) 296-8312
Email; bbiles@steinmitchell.com

Adam R. Waldman

THE ENDEAVOR LAW FIRM, P.C.

1775 Pennsylvania Avenue, N.W., Suite 350
Washington, DC 20006

!cn_]amm u I!ewllSB #29113)

Elliot J. Weingarten (pro hac vice application forthcoming)
BROWN RUDNICK LLP

601 Thirteenth Street, N.W.

Washington, D.C. 20005

Telephone: (202) 536-1700

Facsimile: (202) 536-1701

Email: bechew@brownrudnick.com
Counsel for Plaintiff John C. Depp, II
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Amber Heard is an actress and ambassador on women's rights at the American Civil Liberties Union.
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We should continue to fight sexual 2zsault on college campuses, while simultaneously insisting on fair
processes for adjudicating complaints. Last month, Education Secretary Betsy DeVas proposed changes to
Title I rules governing the treatment of sexual harassment and assault in schools. While some changes
would make the precess for handling complaints more fair, others would weaken protections for sexual
assanlt survivors, For example, the new rules would require schools to investigate only the most extrema
complints, and then only when they are made to designated officials. Women on campuses already have
trouhle coming forward about sexual violence — why woald we allow institutions to scale back supports?

T write this a5 a woman who hed to change my phone number weekly because I was getting death threats.
For months, I rarely left my apartment, and when I did, I was pursued by camera drones and photographers
on foot, an motorcycles and in cars. Tabloid outlets that posted pictores of me spun them in a negative ght
I felt a5 though I was on trial in the court of public opinion — and my life and livelihood depended on myriad
judgments far beyond my contral.

I waot to ensure that women who came forward to talk ahout violence receive more support. We are electing
representatives who know how deeply we care abont these issues, We can work together to demand changes
to laws and rules and social nerms ~ and to right the imbalances that have shaped our ives,

Read more:

The Post’s View: What Betsy DeVas's new Title IX chenges pet right — and wrong
Betsy DeVos: It's time we balance the scales of justice in our schools

Janey Napolitano: Don't let the Trump administration undermine Title IX

Mili Mitra: The most horrifying part of the Dartmouth sexual hégassmmt case

& 710 Comments
&
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The best comments and conversstions at The Washington Posy, defvered every Friday. Join the conversation.
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A transformative
moment for women

BY AMPER FIZARD

wat exposed 1o Akt a1 a very-

young age, ] knes i thing

carly on, withont evet Heving to

betold | kaewihabien have the
power — phyyizally, socially and f-
nandally — sod that alot of lostitu-
tet’ suppoct that Advungement I
knewthislong beforeI had thewords
1o articulate i, and [ bet'you learned
ityoung, 0o,

Ukz tnany women, 1 hed-becn
haressed and penually: assacleed by
the tme [ was of college oge But 1
Joept quiat — [ &1d not expect filing
complaiots to bring justice. And 1
didn't see myseifagavicim

Then two years aga, 1 becams o
public fgure represeyting domertic
wuse, &nd I {elt the' full force of our
cultare’s wrath for women who speak

out.

Friends aod edvisers told me 1
would never sgoin work s un ectress
— that 1 would be blachllsted A
movie I weas attached to recast my
role. [ hed just shot & twop-year cam-
pelzgn zs the face of a gigbal fashion
brend, andthecompanydropped me,
Questicns arose us to whether I
wouldbeablato keep myroleofMera
in the movies “Justice Leagus” gnd

1 hed ihe rarp yaotage poiot of
$telng, in retd time, how Institutions
prot=rt men ascuted ofabuze,

Imagine a powerfid wan as wship,
Uke the Titanie, That thip is & huge
enterprise When 1t etvikes an e
berg, there atea Tot of people on
bourd dasperate 1o patcli up heles —.
‘not becanse they belléve In or even
care about the hip, bul because thelr
mmudependonzhzmter(m&

1n 1ecent years, the #234¢Too move-

* menthas tanght us abodt how power’

hasbesn vaenind L= this works, oot Jist in Holiywodd
lppoinmem bat in &l kinds af (dstutions -
Aitleal ezleal, workn} )| fwyrshiporalm.
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wad Fliindly Hesi-
o rposiediy weee
ally’s  past-lection
zhe blaticd hor lots
ba'rather thap inter-
Aked,

i
ihiah.blah, Such nit-
A:z {fyou're a polit-
3 talk-show host, but
pplg ire more in:u\-
iz3" human aspect —
experiences — pod
b taile,
& quite o Tok includ-
Gualities inthds town
x1300, she s almost
jent poctal eveat we
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person to t;:r.mdum
‘afow auloblographbi.
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1 a plloy, and I-lke

455, an many will
Jwember concession
it MeSally seated
U biét reseue golden

who Beemed meit

bing on BicSallys
1o sten] )l hearts,
¥ tontolidited the

MeSelly s ..lhu
Watedtypleal fightes
fzale’ lporﬂ.ng a Top

fy in particular communitdes to
every wilk of 1ife, women are con-
fronting these men who are buoyed
by tactal, economic. ind -euitural
powtr, And these [nstitutions are be-
Elnnlngto change.

e are ia a transformative politd-
cal momsnt. The presddent of our
couniry bar been zecused by more
than a dozen women of sl mis-
conduct, inchuding essanly and ba-
raament Outrage over hiy pmte-
meoty and behavior hog egerglred o
female-led opposition. #MeToo start-
ed 2 conversation ‘abent just how

affecty

wmwlthmnndsrowmwumens
[aquey serdously. Wonlen' mge and
determivation to end zexuniviolence
areturmicginto s politice] force,

Ve have an opening now to bolster.
mnd bulGd iastitutions protective of
women. For gtzrters, Congresa can
roauthorire and strengthen the Vio-
lenco Agalnst Women Act .First
passed 1o 1984, the ack {4 one of the
moet ¢lfective pieces of legislalion
caacted to fight domestic violence
and sextal asgonilt It éreates support
sytemy for people who report atase,
and provider funding fot mpe crists
centery, Kgal KaallAnct programs
and other critical services It im-
proves reaponses by haw ecforces
ment, and{t prohiblis diserimination
against LGBTQ survivers. Pooding
for the act expired in Scptamber and
basonlybeen tempornrily extendsd.

We should continue tofight sexual
teaull on colege campuses, while
llmu.'ltlncm:slyiu.mﬂnz on ﬁi: pro-

Racismis a

national security issue

oY SHEMILYN IFILL

wo Newly teleased reports from the

Stnate  Intelligence Committee

obout Russiats intecference i the

2018 ¢leétion have bpen agthing

sbort of revelatory, Both sudies — one

produced by researchers at Oxford Univer-

3ity, theoter by the cybersecurity frm New

edge — deseribs In granular detal]

how the Russian govemnment trled to sow

discord end confuslon wmong American

voters. And both. conelude that Russlak

campalga Included o massive offort to de-

cetve and co-opt African Americins, We

Bow have unwsyatlatle confirmation that a

forelgn pawer sought to explolt raslsl ten-
atonsin the United Stotes for its gwn galn,

Ever sioce U8, iptelligence apencies re-

ported that the Ruﬂlm povemment

worked to sway the 2016 election, forefzn

election meddling :tas been pne of our

.| nadonstopnatonal secu:inrecnu:mu. But

ourdlscussionsobout Rossian interferenca
rarely touch on the othér major threst to
our elections; the resurgence of state-spon-
sored voler suppression In the United
Statex [n light of these distorbing new
regorts, It {relear we can no longar think of
forelgn election meddliog as a phenom-
enon separate from attempts to disenfran-
chlie Americans of color. Raclal injusties
Temains a real vilnerabillty fu our demos-
willlng to attack,

How should we respond? First, we hove
to meke i1 easier, not hardar, for Americans
19 vole In the woke of the Supreme Coart's
2013 Shelby County decision, which severe-
1y weakened the Vodng Rights Art, we've
seen § resprgencs of volersuppression ef
forts scrosy the nation, Congress has the
power to fix the Voting Right Act, but o far
It bas deelined to do 6o, The revelations of
Russfa's Taciul tavgeting should serve as a
wake-up eall thet Jamestlc voler suppres-
slen, in sddition to belng unconsitnional,
effectively. sldg foreign sttacks on our de-

hr month, Edueationy B«.te‘lsrr
Betsy DtVos proposed changes to
Tile IX rules guverning the treat-
meat of seaua] harassment and -
sexlt in sehoals; While goma changes
wold maketheprocesyfor handling
cotnphiints more falr, others would
weaken protecions for seaual as-
eault sutvivory. Fot example, the new
rules would require echools to loves-
tigate only the most extreme com-
Py, and then anly whea they are
medetodesignated officlals, Women
oo campuses alteady bave trouble
coming forward about sexuzl vig-
Ience — why would we allow instit-
tlond to scale back supports?

Pwrite thigaya womin who hadio
chunge my phone number weekly
because I was goting death threals,
For months, ¥ purcly left my apart-
rmeqt, wad whes T did, I'was pursyed
bycamerudtones end photogtaphary
on foct, on motoreycles and in cars,
Trhiold eitlsts thet posted pictures
oiroe gpun them lo s aegativr lght T
felt es though 1 was on tiul in the
court of public opinign = and my life
and lvzithoed depended on myriad
Judgments fay beyond my control,.

Iwancto essure that women whe
corae forward o 1lk abowt violooce
recetve mote suppert. Wearoclecdng
represenlarives whalnowhowdeep-
Ty we care about thezs fssusa, Wecan
work together v decoand changes to
Laws and rules and zpcla) poroy —
sndto right the imbalanéesthat hive
shaped our lives,

dly sexual viol
‘woren In every areaofourlives. And
Test month, more women were clect-
d 1o Congres than cver in owy hiy

Tnowriter s an sciressand umbassader
on women's Aights at thve Amerdcan Chil
Litarthsa Union,

JLacios

ALYSSA Rosriﬂa:nr.

Excerpted from» \vnahhmnpom:rvp:oplclul;ummnmrg

Pay the women instead

Incurritg costs upfront {n the form of
lzwyers' feen. Ith & pervenss incentve

Ttheresanedoykemel of rellefinthe  structure that gives companies millions
{nfurladng news tyxlooe that baébees  0f reasons not to deal nggressively with
4018, It 13 the report that CBS dnem malestars wha hamnhdrm-mrku:.
{ntend to pay dlsgraced and & Some have begun to write
formar chairman and chilef 1 i} specifing that

Lealte Mocnves- §120 million in sever-
{H v

o:mployces who ‘are: axed because of
duct can't demand that

e, Orggunn.thn rellefla

e

.- RS e

Indsed, we should take sericusly
the danger thet domestic And forelgn
Froiips may coordloats to suppress lumout
{o future elections, 3 possibllity we can
begin.to forestall, first and foremost, by
protecting the fruochise here ot home.
Rep, Terri A Sowell (DsAle) has alrerdy
{otroduced & comprebsnsive new votlng
rights bill, and Congresa should sviftly act
uponitinthe newyear.

Second, these revelsdons only dechen
ths urgency of demanding more account-
shility from techoology companles, The
New Knowledge report criticizes 1ocial me-
dia companies such as Facebook for mis-
leading Congress about the nature of Rus-
sizn Interference, roting that one even
denled that epecific’ gmup: were targeted.
This {a jun Tmote widenu thet Gilicon

Valley has yet to come to grips with the
enormaua !nfleence it wields in cur democ-
Tacy, and the wayn that forelgn powers cen
use that influente to manipulaie Ameri-
cans. Congress abouid require greater
transparency and responabbity from these
eorporations before the 2020 electiony.

Finally, we bave 1o accept that forelgn
powers sefze npon these divislons becauzse
they are real = because recism remeing the
Unltzd States” Achilles' beel Indesd, it is,
and alfiays bt been: s ostional eecarty
volnersbillty o & findimental agd eagiy
explaitable t\nliw of Amerean llfc thht
belles the Imege and nurrathe of eqn
and justice we project and export arund
the world 1t may be especially dificult ju
our erg of “lake wews® and “ahematire
facts” but we must recognize that our
fallure to acknowledge berd truths, espe.
ciallptvhen it comed to rece, makes {k easler
for forelgn povery 16 tim 03 against gae
anothar. Russia dld not ronjure out of thin
air the black communitys legitimate griey-
angesnboutracist policing. Nordid ltinvent
racist and hateful consplracy theorfes.
Rather, Russisntrollsseized upon these real
Pproblems o ready-made wme:o{dlsm;d.
Woving forward, we oeed to recognize that
eusfellireto hooertly address lssues of clyil
ﬁzhhmdrscll!jmhmmm: aliofos more

ible 1o forelgn inteference.

Thisls bardiythe firat time cur idvuﬁu.\-
jesheveidentiledracaand reelsm es Amer-
ice's great yulnerability Lrring the Cold
War, the Sovlet Union frequently potuted in
segregation and civil unrest es proof of
American hypocrsy. This propaganda wes
aufficlentty widespread, and contsined
encugh trath, that leaders of both partdes
began nrg'uing that segregation under-
miced the Unlled States” positon In the
ColdWar, helping to case thepausage of clvil
Tightslegislation in the 10503 end 1960s..

‘Todey, we need a simliar understandlig
thatour{aflure to ensure equaljnstice for gll
has grave impllcations for ©.3, nafiohal
security. The upcoming House oversight
comminee hearings on Resslan interfec-
ence and voter suppressica will be critical
epportunities 10 educata the public on the
threats ip gur democraty, mdumrdeszrve
Qur close attenton

But we zoat be carcful uotr.nmdune;he
atruggle for raclal equality into a bloadiess
yuestionefnational interest. Civil righin are
egsential to our natlunal security, but na~
tonal security cannot be the chlef rationale
for purtulng civil rdghts After nll, rcfal
{njustice {s ot fust ancther chink in qur
wmnar, 1t s the great flaw in gur chameeter.
Our adversarles Jmow that race roakes us
4UT owl wars? saemy. It is pext Hme we
lum ABls iand truth urseives. .

3
The serli Iy presldent and Gireclarcounsst of
~ tho NARCF Loga| Dofarsa and Educationst Fung,

f DAVID IGNATIUS

A Russian spy’s

msluemm:aa Doliltes foramament
154 Tuboralory exptritnent, A forclEn
adverdary (fetireall it *Hiissin®) beging
o play.with the gubjecty, using carrots
and stidddt Lo iogndition thelr bebavios The

| adverfacy develaps tools to dlal up

up anger
and resentment inside the 1ab bubble, end
even rectults unwiting accomptices to pep-
foom apecific tasko,

Thiz 21n-century palldaal dyztopia sn't
drawo from a "spet script” thet just landed
in Hollywood, It a4 summary of two reports
on the Kremlindinked Ioterhet Reszarch
Agency published thif week by the Senate
Intelligence Committee. The studles de-
scribe & sophisticated, multlsve] Rosdlen
effort 1o usz every avallabls tool of aor open
society to creats resentment, mittrost end
social disorder.

Foraccatury, Resslan intelHgence agents
bave been brilllant at creating false fronys
and maniputating opposition groups. Now,

tharks to the Internet, they seem to be”

perfecting those Jark erta.

Bven us Jt meddler abzead, the Kremlln
haajnst intreduced nesw leglslation to hlock
its gwn Ioformetion gpace from forelin
penetration, Uader the new law, reported
this week, Russle could costrol all Internet
aed message tradfic Into the conntry, block
ADy baopymuuy websites sod, during a
crisis, manage the Russian Web from o
central command pofnt.

Pu: the twa hn!vu of Russlan B‘h‘“f’

el e ae Wi« e

dream -

Y
]

*Russia's {RA sctivities were derigned fo
polarize the 1S, public and Interfere |a
electionsy the study asys, by mwun;ing
Afrfean Arpericas voists 0 boyoott eleq.
tions, pushing righs- \vdn; voters towru‘d

g

conaplratorial and other forms of ]unk
political news and misinformation®

“The Ruggiang pushed evary button. Taqv
scught totap African Amirican anger with
“Blacktivizt” and “Black Matters™ Facebook
papes. They reached conservalives thyg,
pages <alled “Army of Jesos” "Heart of
“Texns” end *Secured Bordera™ The Ustof the
IRAN top-20 Pacebook pages isa uu.lngm
of Americanrage.

The New Enowledge repoct blows the
coveroff these Internet operstions. Jtshows
bow Hillary Clicton end vice-presidential
ominge Tim Kalne were depicted w3 the
“Satan Team,” with Clinton wearing devily
horus end Eaine bearing & red maark on hia
{orebead, The resecrchers found an image
ntJuu:uuﬁngltzd'\!ﬂeAmuic:Gth
Agulin* hat

Instagrim provided a cscha) patfivm ?’br
magipwleting younger AmETicahs Tue
1RAD "Blatkstagram® account bad 303,665
folldwers; “American  Veleosus™ had
215,880: “Sincerely Black” had 196,754: nAig
“Ralnber Natlon® had 156445, to fiame the
top four lnstagram pages cited In thy Ne'w
EKuowlidgeutudy.:

Rusgid’s Intemet actvity wasn't jnsl

akasia Came ot s dledada e T (T d trns atan
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37112019 Armnber Heard an Twitter: “Today | published this op-ed in the Washington Post about the women who are channeling their rage about viale.,..

A

2. Amber Heard &
A”' @realamberheard

Today I published this op-ed in the
‘Washington Post about the women who
are channeling their rage about violence
and inequality into political strength
despite the price of coming forward.

\ Follow v

- From college campuses to Congress,
we're balancing the scales.

Opinion | Amber Heard: | spoke up against sexual violence — and fa...

We have an opening now to bolster and build institutions protective of
women. Let's not ignore it

washingtonpost.com

1:28 PM - 19 Dec 2018

1,292 Retweets 3556lkess 62 0 PHBBIQPD ©

Q122 1M 13k 3.6K
2  Amber Heard & @realamberheard - 19 Dec 2018 v
-y
A I'm honored to announce my role as an @ACLU ambassador on women's rights.
Tha A1 ir #ha Avranioa timm thamt flurt inrnivnd mmn be bhacamnns nen asbioiek mn T
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IN THE CIRCUIT COURT OF FAIRFAX COUNTY, VIRGINIA, ;E‘l; C/,? HUFREY
: SIREANT ¢
JOHN C. DEPP, II : Xy OUry
Plaintiff,
V. : : Civil Action No.: CL-2019-00_0291 1
AMBER LAURA HEARD
Defendant,

CERTIFICATE QF SERVICE

I hereby certify that I caused a true and correct copy of the enclosed Subpoena/Subpoena
Duces Tecum to Person Under Foreign Subpoena and Subpoena Duces Tecum Pursuant to
CPLR 3119 to be sent via email (per written agreement between the Parties), on this 4th day of
August 2020, to counsel of record.

enjamin G. B No. 29113)
Camille M. Vasquez (pro hac vice) Benjamin G. Chew (VSB No. 29113)
BROWN RUDNICK LLP Andrew C. Crawford (VSB No. 89093)
2211 Michelson Drive BROWN RUDNICK LLP
Seventh Floor 601 Thirteenth Street, N.W.
Irvine, CA 92612 _ Washington, DC 20005 '
Telephone: (949) 752-7100 Telephone: (202) 536-1700
Facsimile: (949) 252-1514 Facsimile: (202) 536-1701
cvasquez@brownrudnick.com . bechew@brownrudnick.com

- acrawford@brownrudnick.com
Adam R. Waldman (pro hac vice)
THE ENDEAVOR LAW FIRM, P.C.
1775 Pennsylvania Avenue, N.W.
Washington, DC 20006
Telephone: (202) 715-0966
Facsimile: (202) 715-0964
awaldman@theendeavorgroup.com

Counsel for Plaintiff John C. Depp, II



SERVICE LIST

J. Benjamin Rottenborn (VSB No. 84796)
Joshua R. Treece (VSB No. 79149)
WOODS ROGERS PLC

10 S. Jefferson Street, Suite 1400

P.O. Box 14125

Roanoke, VA 24011

Telephone: (540) 983-7540
brottenborn@woodsrogers.com
Jjtreece@woodsrogers.com

Counsel for Defendant Amber Laura Heard

Elaine Charlson Bredehoft (VSB No. 23766)
Carla D. Brown (VSB No. 44803)

Adam S. Nadelhaft (VSB No. 91717)
David E. Murphy (VSB No. 90938)
Charlson Bredehofi Cohen & Brown, P.C.
11260 Roger Bacon Drive, Suite 201
Reston, VA 20190

Telephone: (703) 318-6800

Facsimile: (703) 318-6808
ebredehoft@cbcblaw.com
cbrown@cbcblaw.com
anadelhaft@cbcblaw.com
dmurphy@cbceblaw.com



brownrudnick

BENJAMIN G. CHEW
direct dial: 202.536,1785

bechew@brownrudnick.com

o 2
August 4, 2020 ?n =)
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VIA HAND DELIVERY %%ﬂ% = ;
Lom @
Mr. John T. Frey, Clerk L %-4 o
Fairfax County Circuit Court 2, o

4110 Chain Bridge Road, Suite 320
Fairfax, Virginia 22030

RE: John C. Depp, Il v. Amber Laura Heard
. Case No. CL-2019-0002911
‘ Subpoena: American Civil Liberties Union, Inc.

Dear Mr. Frey,
Please find enclosed three copies of an original foreign subpoena duces tecum of third party
witness American Civil Liberties Union, Inc. issued pursuant to Virginia Code Section 8.01-

412.10 and California Civil Procedure Code Section 2029.100 et seq. The enclosed subpoena
- has been issued in accordance with both Acts and the reciprocal privileges included therein.

The enclosed documents will be served by private process server. Please file these documents
with the Court’s papers in this case and return 2 file-stamped copy of the same in the enclosed

self-addressed envelope. Thank you for your assistance
Regards,

BROWN RUDNICK LLP

enjamin

ew \| S@P 2T S

Enclosures

Brown Rudnick LLP | brownrudiick.com | 601 Thisteenth Street NW, Suite 600, Washington, DC, 20005 11.202.536.1700
X .



Fairfax Circuit Court
Circuit Court
Receipt No, 899743
Receipt Date: 08/10/2020 01:23 PM

Received of: Chew,Benjamin $ 7.00

Seven and 00/100
John C Depp Il vs. Amber Laura Heard

Filer{s): Depp, John C Il
Case

Amount

CL-2019-0002911
Copy - Certified 2.00
Subpoena Duces Tecum Clerks Fee 5.00
Total: 7.00
Balance due court: $ 0.00

Next fine/fee due date:
Next restitution due date:

Check (Num: 271, Exp: xx/xx)

Amount Tendered: 7.00
Overage: 0.00
Change Due: 0.00

John T. Frey, Clerk of Circuit Court

By:

Deputy Clerk
Clerk: CSMI32

Page 1 of 1 08/10/2020 01:24 PM User ID: Clerk: CSMI32






